ADT-DK300A/400A User's Manual

Copyright

Adtech (Shenzhen) Technology Co., Ltd. (Adtech hereafter) is in possession of the copyright of this manual. Without the permission of Adtech, the imitation, copy, transcription and translation by any organization or individual are prohibited. This manual doesn't contain any assurance, stance or implication in any form. Adtech and the employees are not responsible for any direct or indirect data disclosure, profits loss or cause termination caused by this manual or any information about mentioned products in this manual. In addition, the products and data in this manual are subject to changes without prior notice.

All rights reserved.

Adtech (Shenzhen) Technology Co., Ltd.

Version History

ltem No.		First uplo	baded	Version	No.	Pages	Compiled by	Typeset by
BZ001M056	BZ001M056A 2012-10-9		10-9	A0101		40	Shi Tingliang/	
					Rev	vision		
Date Version/Pag Result						Confirmed by		
2012-9-18							Shi Tingliang	

Remark:

We have collated and checked this Manual strictly, but we can't ensure that there are no error and omission in this Manual. Due to constant improvement of product functions and service quality, any products and software described in this manual and the content of the manual are subject to changes without prior notice.

Contents

1.	OPERATION INTRODUCTION1
1.1	LCD AND KEY PANEL
1.2	System menus
1.3	OPERATING KEYS
1.4	MANUAL OPERATION
	1.4.1 Returning to reference point manually5
	1.4.2 Continuous feeding manually
	1.4.3 Single step feeding7
	1.4.4 Handwheel feeding7
	1.4.5 Manual auxiliary function operation8
	1.4.6 Working coordinate system settings (tool setting)9
	1.4.6.1 Enter current position to specified coordinate system directly (all axes)
	1.4.6.2 Coordinate axis settings 11
	1.4.6.3 Modify coordinate value 13
1.5	DATA SETTINGS
	1.5.1 Tool compensation data setting14
	1.5.2 System parameter setting
2.	AUTOMATIC OPERATION19
2.1	AUTOMATIC OPERATION
2.2	MDI OPERATION
2.3	USB DISK DNC

2.4	SPEED RATE ADJUSTMENT	22
	2.4.1 Feeding rate	22
	2.4.2 Manual rate	22
	2.4.3 Principal axis rotation	23
2.5	SBK FUNCTION	23
2.6	BDT FUNCTION	23
2.7	STOPPING AUTOMATIC OPERATING	24
	2.7.1 Program stops	24
	2.7.2 Program ends	24
	2.7.3 Feeding pause	24
	2.7.4 Reset	24
3.	SAFE OPERATION	25
3.1	EMERGENCY STOP	25
3.2	HARD LIMIT OVER TRAVEL	25
3.3	Soft limit over travel	25
3.4	Self-DIAGNOSIS FUNCTION	26
4.	PROGRAM SAVING & EDITING	27
4.1	Keypad input (new program)	27
4.2	Copying processing files from USB disk	27
4.3	Reading programs into work area	27
	4.3.1 Reading programs from controller into work area	27
	4.3.2 Reading programs from USB disk into work area	28

4.4	Editing & modifying programs	28
	4.4.1 Deleting files in memory	28
5.	MAIN INTERFACES OF THE SYSTEM	29
5.1	POSITION INTERFACE	29
5.2	ABSOLUTE POSITION	29
5.3	RELATIVE POSITION	29
5.4	COMPREHENSIVE COORDINATES	
5.5	EDIT INTERFACE	
	5.5.1 Program edit	31
5.6	System info interface	
5.7	MDI INTERFACE	
5.8	FILE MANAGEMENT	
5.9	GRAPHIC SIMULATION	35
5.10	COMPENSATION INTERFACE	
5.11	Workpiece coordinate system setting interface	

1. Operation Introduction

1.1 LCD and key panel



Fig. 3.1 DK300A Operating Panel Diagram

Note:

Press the submenu buttons to perform the operations of submenus.

Manual axis moving and edit & input are composite. It has different definitions according to the modes.

System working mode switch section is used to switch working modes, which can improve the security

and system performance. Handwheel and single step mode are switched with Repeat button.

LCD unit



Fig. 3.2 DK300A LCD Screen Diagram

Note:

Screen info shows the information of current window

Working mode info shows currently selected working mode

System main screen shows current main screen.

The submenu options are used to switch submenus with left triangle, F1~F6 and right triangle. The right

arrow is used to turn pages, and the left arrow is used to close the submenus in next level and previous menu.

1.2 System menus

DK300A system uses cascading menu structure. You can press the following keys to operate the menus.



Press a key to show the corresponding content in the bottom of the LCD.



main menu contains several submenus, which are shown below:

1.3 Operating keys

The keys of DK300A system are defined below:

Кеу	Figure	Purpose
[复位/RESET]	复位 RESET	Cancel alarm, reset CNC
Address/number keys	0 * 1 , 9)	Enter letters, numbers, etc.
	A G B Z K	
[EOB], [取消/CAN]	EOB 取消 CAN	Confirm or cancel operation
[EOB], [取消/CAN], [删除/DEL]	EOB 取消 CAN DEL	Program edit (insert, delete, modify)
Mode switch key	自动 AUTO JOG 录入 EDIT	Select operating mode
	手轮 MPG STEP 单步 HOME	
Cursor moving key	↑ _{+%} ↓ _{-%}	Four keys are available: Up/Down: adjust ration, move cursor between subsections;
		Left/Right: move cursor to left/right

Кеу	Figure	Purpose
Page key	PAGE PAGE	Up/Down: Turn pages
Menu keys	运转 MONITOR PROG SYSTEM	Select the menus
	坐标 COORD DGNOS	
Principal axis positive rotation	T	Press it to rotate the principal axis
		rotating
Principal axis reverse rotation		Press it to rotate the principal axis reversely, and press it again to stop
		rotating
Coolant		Coolant on/off
Lubricant	8	Lubricant on/off
[跳选/BDT]	跳 选 BDT	Block delete on/off
[单段/SBK]	单段 SBK	Single block function on/off
[暂停/PAUSE]	暂 停 PAUSE	Pause automatic running
[启动/START]	启动 START	Start automatic running

1.4 Manual operation

1.4.1 Returning to reference point manually

The engraving machine tool has specific mechanical position, which is called as reference point and for tool exchange and coordinates setting. Generally, when the power supply is connected, the tool should be moved to the reference point. This operation is also called as home operation, which will make the CNC system confirm the origin of machine tool.

The home operation includes program and mechanical mode:

For program home, the action completes when the coordinates of machine tool are 0, and won't check whether origin switch is in position;

For mechanical home, the external home sensor switch is used to locate the origin of the machine tool; two checking modes are available:

With the external sensor switch, the home operation completes when the sensing is successfully repeatedly.

The external sensor switch is used as deceleration switch, and the servo home is enabled as home signal after sensing and then the sensing stops.

You can set the "Home mode" in [Parameter] [Comprehensive Parameter], and move to comprehensive home mode (36# parameter) EOB to select. You can also press [SBK] key in home mode to switch among "Mechanical – Program – Mechanical..." quickly. This method doesn't conflict with parameter setting. You can select accordingly. To use servo home as the home signal, you need to set "Axis phase Z home enable" to "1" in [Parameter] [Axis Configuration] in mechanical home mode, and the setting will take effect in next home checking.

Several methods are available for tool returning to reference point and the steps follow:

(1) Each axis returns to reference point separately







HOME] to select home operation; Press the composite key]

2. In the numbers section to return the corresponding axis to reference point. (2) The axes return

to reference point simultaneously



Generally, the system will perform home operation after connecting the power supply. If the power fails while the machine tool is moving, the system also will return to reference point when the power supply is connected again. Return to Z axis to prevent tool and workpiece from colliding, and damaging tool, workpiece and clamp.

1.4.2 Continuous feeding manually

Press the keys on the operation panel or handwheel to move the tool along every axis.

The operation follows:

手动

Press the mode switch key [100] to select manual operation;

8 / 2 #

(2) Press composite keys [6 SP], [4 [];



] in numbers area to move the tool along selected axis.

In manual mode, 51 key can be used to switch the manual speed and rapid traverse speed. The rapid traverse speed of every axis depends on comprehensive parameter 009-012 (rapid traverse speed setting). After switching to rapid traverse speed, the manual speed of the position interface will be highlighted, while the actual speed of the position interface is sampled from the moving speed of current axis. This value can truly reflect the moving speed of current axis (unit: mm/min);

Note:

Only single axis motion is available in manual mode.

1.4.3 Single step feeding

Single step mode is similar to manual mode, the operations are same, but only moves a specified pulse increment every time press the key.

The specific operation follows:

(1) Press the mode switch key [(this key is composite, and you can press it repeatedly to switch the modes) to select the single step operation;

(1) Press composite keys [6 SP],



[] in numbers area to move the tool for a fixed distance along the selected axis. This distance is controlled by four rates (1.000, 0.100, 0.010, 0.001) (unit: mm). To select pulse increment, press

4 _[] <u>8 /</u>, <u>2 #</u>, 7 <u>, 3 =</u>



🧶 key in the [Position] interface.

1.4.4 Handwheel feeding

In handwheel mode, rotate the handwheel to make the machine perform single step or continuous motion. Determine the feed by testing the handwheel signal of the handheld box. In handwheel mode, the feeding axis and feeding unit are determined by the axis selection signal of the handheld box.

The handwheel feeding step follows:



Press the mode switch key [_______] to select handwheel operation;

- (2) Rotate the dip switch on the handwheel to select handwheel axis (X, Y, Z, A);
- (3) Rotate the increment dip switch on the handwheel to select the moving amount (0.1, 0.01, 0.001);

(4) Rotate the handwheel to move the machine tool. The tool moves certain distance every time you rotate the handwheel for a scale. (For example, if you select X axis in step (2) and select 0.01 in step (3), the tool moves 0.01mm every scale). Rotate the handle continuously to move the machine tool on this axis continuously.

Note:

The handwheel feeding mode controls only one coordinate axis every time; the faster the handwheel rotates, the faster the machine tool moves.

1.4.5 Manual auxiliary function operation

Coolant on/off

In handwheel/single step/manual mode, press this key to switch on/off the coolant.

Key indicator: No matter in what mode, the key indicator is on if only the coolant is on, or else the indicator is off.

Lubricant on/off

In handwheel/single step/manual mode, press this key to switch on/off the lubricant.

Key indicator: No matter in what mode, the key indicator is on if only the lubricant is on, or else the indicator is off.

Principal axis positive rotation/stop

In handwheel/single step/manual mode, press this key to rotate the principal axis positively and press it again to stop the axis.

Key indicator: No matter in what mode, the key indicator is on if only the principal axis is positive rotating, or else the indicator is off.

Principal axis reverse rotation/stop

In handwheel/single step/manual mode, press this key to rotate the principal axis reversely and press it again to stop the axis.

Key indicator: No matter in what mode, the key indicator is on if only the principal axis is reverse rotating, or else the indicator is off.

General instructions for manual operation keys



are available in handwheel, single step and manual mode;

When the principal axis is rotating, press the reverse rotation key, the principal axis will stop first, and rotate in reverse direction after pressing it again.

When auxiliary output is on, if the system is switched to other modes, the output is unchanged; you need to press "Reset" key to switch it off, execute the corresponding M code in automatic mode or execute the corresponding M code in MDI interface to turn off the output;

When the principal axis is positive/reverse rotating and execute M04/M03 directly, the system first stops positive/reverse rotating and then execute M04/M03 instruction;

Positive/reverse rotating of principal is stopped while emergency stop, and other outputs can be set according to system parameters.

1.4.6 Working coordinate system settings (tool setting)

Tool setting is the main operation and important skill during CNC processing. Under certain conditions, tool setting precision can determine the processing precision of parts, and the tool setting efficiency also affects the CNC processing efficiency directly. DK300A and DK400A realize tool setting through G54-G59 coordinate system.

Workpiece coordinate system setting method

1.4.6.1 Enter current position to specified coordinate system directly (all axes)



1. Press COORD to enter the coordinate system interface. The background of select coordinate system is

white.

		<u>^</u>			
Coordinate system	Reset	/ Monitor	Edit	Parameters Coordinate	Diagnosis
Absolute position X +0000,000 Y +0000,000 Z +0000,000 Mechanical position X +0000,000 Y +0000,000	Coordinate system G 5 4 X + Y + Z + A + C 5 6	Compensation 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	G55 X + Y + Z + A + G57	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	
Relative position +0000.000 +0000.000 +0000.000 +0000.000 +0000.000	X + Y + Z + A +	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	X + Y + Z + A +	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	
Stopped					
<<< Coordinate settings	Compensation				>>>
nen, press (手动 Jog to select n	to select th	ne coordinate , and press	system, e.g X+➡ 6 _{SP} , 4	. G54. ■X- 4 [, 8 / ,	2 [×] ₩
$\left[\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{f}_{A^{+}}\\ \mathbf{g} \end{array}\right], \left[\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{f}_{A^{-}}\\ 1 \end{array}\right], to move$	e the axis to tl	he origin of th	e coordinat	e system.	
EOB					

4. Press to show a dialog box, and press "EOB" to set current coordinates as the zero point of

the program.

Coordinate system	Manual	Monitor	Edit	Paramete	coordinates	Diagnosis
Coordinate system Absolute position X +0000,000 Y +0000,000 Z +0000,000 X +0000,000 X +0000,000 X +0000,000 Y +0000,000	Manual Coordinate system G 5 4 X Z G EOB key X Z A OK	Monitor Compensation et machine tool oordinates to co oordinate syste	G55 urrent m?	0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.	000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000	Diagnosis
Stopped						
<<< Coordinale setting	Compensation					>>>

5. After setting the coordinate system, copy the mechanical position values to the axis value in the dotted box as shown in the figure below.

Coordinate system	Man	ual Nonitor	Edit	Parameters Coordinate	Diagnosis
Absolute position X +0000,000 Y +0000,000 Z +0000,000 Mechanical position X X +0000,968 Y -0001,662 Z -0001,968	Man Coordinate syste (G54 X + Y - Z - A + G56 X + Y + Y +	U.al Monitor Compensation 0.968 1.662 1.968 0.000 0.000 0.000	G 5 5 X + Y + Z + A + G 5 7 X + Y +	Parameters Coordinate 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	S Diagnosis
Relative position U +0000, 000 V +0000, 000 W +0000, 000	Î + Λ +	0.000 0.000	Ž + A +	0.000 0.000	
Stopped					
<<< Coordinate settings	Compensation				>>>

1.4.6.2 Coordinate axis settings

坐标 ^{COORD} to enter the coordinate system interface.

• 2. Then, press to select the coordinate system, e.g. G55. Coordinate system Manual Monitor Edit Parameters Coordinates Diagnosis Absolute position Coordinate system Compensation +0000.968 G54 G 5 5 -0001.662 -0001.968 X ÷ 0.000 X + 0.000 Y ÷ 0.000 Y ÷ 0.000 2 ÷ 0.000 Z 0.000 ÷ Mechanical position ÷ 0.000 A + 0.000 ٨ +0000.968 -0001.662 G56 G57 -0001.968X ÷ 0.000 0.000 X + 0.000 0.000 ÷ + ÷ 0.000 ÷ 0.000 +0000.968 ÷ 0.000 ÷ 0.000 -0001.662 -0001.968 Stopped Compensation <<< **Coordinate settings** >>>

3. Press

录入

to select the edit mode.



U; the selected coordinate parameters are shown on blue background; for example,

to select axis X, press X, the coordinates of corresponding axis number will be shown, and prompt the values to be inserted.

5. Press "EOB" key to finish the setting of currently selected coordinate system, as axis Y in the figure

below

Coordina	nte system	Edit	Monitor	Edit	Parameters Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute p	position	Coordinate syste	m Compensation			
X +0000 X -0001	. 968	G 5 4		G 5 5		
z -0001	. 968	X +	0.000	X +	0.000	
		Y +	0.000	Y	1.662	
Hashanios	a neettee	Z +	0.000	Z +	0.000	
X +0000	968	A +	0.000	A +	0.000	
Y -0001	. 662	G56		G 5 7		
Z -0001	. 968	X +	0.000	X +	0.000	
		Y +	0.000	Y +	0.000	
Relative p	osition	Z +	0.000	Z +	0.000	
U +0000	. 968	A +	0.000	A +	0.000	
V -0001	. 662					
Stopped						
<<<	Coordinate settings	Compensation				>>>

1.4.6.3 Modify coordinate value

In addition to above two methods, you can also press the keypad to set the coordinate system in the following steps:



Coordinate	e system	Edit	1	ionitor 🚺	Edit	Parameters Coordinate	Diagnosis
Absolute po	ettion	Coordinate syst	en Compens	ation			
X +0000. Y -0001.	968 662	<u>G5</u> 4		G 5	5		
Z -0001.	968	X +	0.00	0 X	+	0.000	
		Y +	0.00	0 Y	1.	1.662	
Mechanical	nostion	<u>z</u> +	0.00			0.000	
X +0000.	968	A +	0.00	0 A	+	0.000	
Y -0001.	662	G 5 6		G 5	7		
Z -0001.	968	X +	0.00	0 X	+	0.000	
		Y +	0.00	0 Y	+	0.000	
Relative nos	ution	Z +	0.00	0 Z	+	0.000	
U +0000.	968	A +	0.00	0 A	+	0.000	
V -0001.	662						
· -0001.	308						
Stopped							
<<< (Coordinate settings	Compensation					>>>

Fig. 4A

Coordinate system	Edit	Monitor	Edit	Parameters Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute position	Coordinate syste	en Compensation			
X +0000.968 Y -0001.662	G54		G 5 5		
Z -0001.968	X +	0.000	X +	0.000	
	Y +	0.000	Y -	1.662	
Mechanical position		0.000		0.000	
× +0000.968	0.5.0	0.000		0.000	
Z -0001.968	G 5 6 Y +	0.000	G 5 7 ¥ +	0 000	
	Ŷ +	0.000	Ŷ +	0.000	
Relative position	Ζ –	10.500	Z +	0.000	
U +0000.968	A +	0.000	A +	0.000	
-0001.062 -0001.968					
Stopped					
<<< Coordinate settings	Compensation				>>>

Fig. 4B

Edit other axes in the same method.

1.5 Data settings

1.5.1 Tool compensation data setting

The tool compensation parameters can be set as follow:



setting interface;

Coordina	ate system	Edit		lonitor 📔 Ed	it Paramete	coordinate	Diagnosis
Absolute	position	Coordinate syste	m Compens	ation			
X +0000 Y -0001	0.968	Compensation	n No. Length	compensation	Radius comp	pensation	
z -0001	. 968	1	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
		2	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
		3	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
Mechanica	al position	4	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
Y -0001	. 662	5	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
Z -0001	. 968	6	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
		7	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
Delethorn	antiferra	8	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
. Kelative.p	08100n), 968	9	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
V -0001	. 662	10	+00	00.000	+0000	. 000	
-0001	. 968						
Stopped							
<<<	Coordinate settings	Compensation					>>>

to select the parameter, e.g. compensation No. 1, enter -11.2 and press

to modify

EOB

the parameters where the cursor is located, as shown in the figure below

Coordinate system	Edit	Monitor Edit	Parameters Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute position	Coordinate system	Compensation		
X +0000.968 Y -0001.662	Compensation No.	Length compensation	Radius compensation	
Z -0001.968	1	-0011.200	+0000.000	
	2	+0000.000	+0000.000	
Mechanical position	4	+0000.000	+0000.000	
X +0000.968 Y -0001.662	5	+0000.000	+0000.000	
Z -0001.968	6	+0000.000	+0000.000	
	7	+0000.000	+0000.000	
. Relative position	9	+0000.000	+0000.000	
+0000.968 -0001.662	10	+0000.000	+0000.000	
u -0001.968				
Stopped				
Supped	Commenter			
<<< r commute seamly	compensation			,,,,

Ζ

K

and then press

Press

P Enter tool length compensation quickly: select compensation number, press

to insert Z

EOB

axis coordinates into length compensation, as shown in the figure below

Coordinate system	Edit	Monitor Edit	Parameters Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute position	Coordinate system	Compensation		
X +0000.968 X -0001.662	Compensation No.	Length compensation	Radius compensation	
Z -0001.968	1	-0011.200	+0000.000	
	2	+0000.000	+0000.000	
Mechanical position	3	+0000.000	+0000.000	
¥ +0000. 968		+0000.000	+0000.000	
Z -0001.662 Z -0001.968	6	+0000.000	+0000.000	
	7	+0000.000	+0000.000	
Palette pasition	8	+0000.000	+0000.000	
U +0000.968	9	+0000.000	+0000.000	
V -0001.662 W -0001.968	10	+0000.000	+0000.000	
Stopped				
<<< Coordinate settings	Compensation			>>>

Caution

- The value entry dialog box has two input methods, i.e. direct assignment and increment assignment. For direct assignment, the entered value is assigned to specified parameter directly; for increment assignment, the entered value is added to specified parameter and then assigned to the parameter;
- 2. The increment input box and direct input box have a prompt symbol in the left respectively, '=' indicates direct input, '+' indicates increment input, and the default mode is direct assignment. To change to increment assignment, press the "UP/DOWN" key
- 3. The increment input is shown above, 1# compensation is -11.2, to add -0.4, the operation



mode, "+" is to add the new value to original value, and "=" is to replace with the new

value directly. Then, press **EOB** to finish the modification of the compensation, as shown below.

Coordinate system	Edit	Monitor Edi	t Paramete	Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute position	Coordinate system	Compensation			
X +0000.968 Y -0001.662	Compensation No.	Length compensation	Radius comp	ensation	
Z -0001.968	1	-0011.600	+0000	. 000	
	2	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
Mechanical position	3	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
X +0000.968	5	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
Z -0001.968	6	+0000.000	+0000	000	
	7	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
Relative position	8	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
U +0000.968	10	+0000.000	+0000	. 000	
V -0001.662 W -0001.968	10				
Stopped					
<<< Coordinate settings	Compensation				>>>

1.5.2 System parameter setting

The system parameters can be modified as follow:



To change the comprehensive parameter 1 to 10, select edit mode, press the direction keys to select 1#

parameter, and press (1, 0, *), (1, 0, *

The value entry dialog box has two input methods, i.e. direct assignment and increment assignment. For direct assignment, the entered value is assigned to specified parameter directly; for increment assignment, the entered value is added to specified parameter and then assigned to the parameter; the increment input box and direct input box have a prompt symbol in the left respectively, '=' indicates direct input, '+' indicates

increment input, and the default mode is direct assignment. To change to increment assignment, press the



operation is invalid.

2. Automatic operation

The machine tool moving according to prepared program is called as automatic operation. The automatic

operation modes of DK300A system follow:

Memory operation, MDI operation, USB disk DNC operation

2.1 Automatic operation

The machine tool can operate according to the program in DK300A memory, which is called as memory operation.

The program is prestored in the memory. Select and load a program with the operation panel and press



The step of memory operation follows:

Save the program in the memory (see 4. Program saving & editing for details);

Select [Edit], [File] in the menu or press [File] on the panel to enter file operation interface;

File manag	ement	Edit		Nonitor	Edit	Parame	ter Coordinates	Diagnosis
My device					_			_
₩L.CC	al Disk (C:)	Second Constant	XISA (D:)	Local Di	sk (E:)			
Local Disk	(D:)							_
Stopped								
Close	Device	New	Сору	Paste		Cut	Connect to PC	>>>

Disk C is YAFS file system disk, which is dedicated system disk. Disk D is FAT data disk, which saves processing files and system settings as well as PC interactive data. Removable USB disk saves external user data.



to move the cursor, press [EOB] to select a program and

load the file into the work area; as shown in the figure below

File manag	ement	Edit		Nonitor 📕	Edit	Paramet	er Coordinates	Diagnosis
DINPROGN								
1	佛1.CNC	📔 0000.CH	c 🚦	Liden Di	sk (E:)	!	弥勒佛1.HC	
副面具	.NC	Loadin	g code			1	龙.NC	
		75%				1		
		10%						
File size:	8.67 M(908	86991B)	D	ISK Space	e:112.	9 MB	Free Space:	14.0 MB
Stopped								
Close	Device	New	Сору	Paste		Cut	Connect to PC	>>>

(5) Press mode selection key [AUTO] to switch to automatic mode;

启动 (6) Press the [START] key to run the program, and the indicator is on.

2.2 MDI operation

In [Monitor] interface, switch to [MDI], enter the program with keypad and make the machine tool operate according to the program. The program block isn't saved in system memory, and can't be preserved upon power failure. This is called as MDI operation and the step follows:

(1) Press mode selection key [Edit];

Select [Monitor], [MDI] in the menu to enter MDI interface;

Enter program block instruction manually;

MDI runnin	g	Edit		Nonitor E	dit Paramet	er Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolu X +00 Y -00 Z -00	te position 00.968 01.662 01.968	G17G9 G01X2 G02X3 M30 %	0G00G54 0Z30 0Z40R10	4 D			-
Mecha X +00 Y -00 Z -00 File size:	nical position 00.968 01.662 01.968						
Stopped							
<<<	Position	Track	MDI	Auxiliary function	Macro variables	CAM	>>>

(5) Press [Start], [EOB] to start executing the program block, as shown below.

File manager	ment	Edit		lonitor 🗸	Edit	Paramet	er Coordinates	Diagnosis
Absolute	position	G17G9 G01X2	0G00G54 0Z30	4				
Y -000 Z -000	1.662	GC M3 %	MDI pro	gram will be	star	ted.		_
			Continue	2?				
Mechanic	cal position							
X +000 Y -000 Z -000	0.968 1.662 1.968		ок	Cano	el			
File size:								
Stopped								
<<<	Position	Track	MDI	Auxiliary function	an N	acto variables	CAM	>>>

2.3 USB disk DNC

The program read from external USB disk can operate the machine tool without saving in CNC memory.

This operation is called as USB disk DNC operation.

The step of USB disk DNC operation follows:

- (1) Insert the USB disk;
- (2) Select [Monitor], [File] in the menu to enter file operation interface;
- (3) Select USB disk and press [EOB] to enter;
- (4) Move cursor to select a file in the disk;
- (5) Press [EOB] to load the file into work area (system buffer);
- (6) Press mode selection key [Auto];
- (7) Press the [Start] key to run the program, and the indicator is on.

Caution

The system won't record the USD disk path. If power failure occurs during DNC processing, the program info will be lost when the power supply is connected again.

2.4 Speed rate adjustment

2.4.1 Feeding rate

In automatic mode, press key in [Position] interface to adjust the feeding rate; Press

the key once to increase or decrease by 10% (10%-150%).

2.4.2 Manual rate

In manual mode, press



key in [Position] interface to adjust the manual rate; Press the

f you press the 51 key and



key to increase or decrease by 10% (10%-150%). If you press the \blacksquare

you can adjust the fast forward rate by 10% (10%-150%).

2.4.3 Principal axis rotation



key to adjust the principal axis rotation by

100r/min. The maximum rotation is set by the principal axis parameters in the system and the minimum rotation is 16r/min. If you press and hold the key for three seconds, the value will be increased or decreased quickly.

2.5 SBK function

自我 [1] A start the SBK function. Current program block stops after

executing; press [START] again and next block stops after executing. The SBK mode allows checking the program block by block.



① In G28-G30, single block also can be stopped at the center point;

(2) The stop points of single block in fixed circle are (1), (2), (6) in the figure below; when the single blocks of (1), (2) stops, the feeding pauses and the pause indicator is on.



2.6 BDT function

In automatic mode, press [路选] to start the BDT function, which will make the block instructions in the line after '/' in the program invalid.

2.7 Stopping automatic operating

Two methods are available to stop automatic operating, i.e. enter stop command where the program will

stop (M00, M01) and press the RESET key on the operation panel to stop the machine tool.

2.7.1 Program stops

After executing the block with M00 or M01, the automatic operating stops, which is same to single block stop, and all mode information is saved. Start with CNC and the automatic operation can be started again.

After processing a part, the automatic operation stops.

2.7.2 Program ends

After executing the block with M30, the automatic operating stops, changes into reset state, and returns to program start.

2.7.3 Feeding pause

During automatic operation, press the [PAUSE] key on the operation panel, the automatic operation pauses and the indicator is on; press [START] again to continue operating the machine tool and the pause indicator is on.

2.7.4 Reset

During automatic operation, press the [RESÉT] key on the operation panel and the system stops

复位

复位 immediately. Here, [^{PESET}] has the same function as emergency stop button.

3. Safe operation

3.1 Emergency stop

Press the emergency stop button on the machine tool, which will stop immediately, and all outputs such as principal axis rotation and coolant are turned off. Rotate the button clockwise to cancel emergency stop, but all outputs must be restarted.

€[™] Caution:

The power supply isn't always cut off upon emergency stop. Please refer to the electrical configuration description of the machine tool manufacturer for details;

Before releasing emergency stop, please eliminate the problems of the machine tool.

3.2 Hard limit over travel

The system alarms if the tool touches travel switch during operation. The axis in corresponding direction can't move, and only moves in reverse direction. Before the alarm is released, the system can't enter

automatic operation normally. After investigating the alarm reason, press [史文王] to clear the alarm information.

3.3 Soft limit over travel

If the tool enters the restriction area regulated by the parameter (travel limit), the system alarms over travel, and the tool decelerates and stops. At this moment, you can move the tool to safe direction in manual

mode, and then press [RESET] to release the alarm.

During automatic operation, when the tool touches an axial travel switch, the tool decelerates and stops all axial motions, and only displays one over travel alarm.

During manual operation, when the tool touches an axial travel switch, the tool only decelerates and stops motion on current axis, and still moves along other axes.

When the tool is in safe position, press [Reset] to clear the alarm. Please refer to the manual of the machine tool for details.

Both limit alarm and soft limit alarm have a deceleration stop, and therefore the sensing range of the limit should have sufficient space, or else the limit protection will be disabled due to over travel.

Alarm processing

If alarm occurs, please refer to the alarm code to confirm the failure reason.

When alarm occurs, if the system isn't reset, the alarm will constantly prompt no matter whether the alarm still exists, so as to avoid the conditions that false alarm causes system suspended, but can't find the reason.

If the error is caused by data setting, modify the data, and then press [Reset] to clear the alarm info.

When alarm occurs, please remove the alarm reason. Please note that several alarms may occur at the same time. Please refer to the alarm info in the Diagnosis menu for details. When the alarms are eliminated, please press [Reset] to clear the alarm ring.

3.4 Self-diagnosis function

The CNC system may stop even when there is no alarm info, this may be because the system is executing certain processes. Please check with the self-diagnosis function.

The step of self-diagnosis follows:

(1) In the main menu, press [Diagnosis] to enter the diagnosis interface;

(2) Select [Input] to enter the input diagnosis interface, or select [Output] to enter the output diagnosis interface;

(3) Output diagnosis: In edit mode, press the direction keys to select the output port, and press [EOB] to switch the output level of corresponding output port;

Input diagnosis: When certain input signal is valid, the corresponding area on the screen flashes.

4. Program saving & editing

Saving the program in the memory

4.1 Keypad input (new program)

Create new program in the memory with the keypad, and the step follows:

In the main menu, press [Edit] to enter program edit interface;

Press [File] to enter file operation interface;

Select [New] to create a new file;

Enter the file name and press [EOB] to confirm and create a new program in current directory in the

memory, and load into the system by default;

Select [Close] to exit [Edit] interface;

In edit mode, enter the program content;

After editing all programs, press [Reset] to save the edited programs into the system memory.

4.2 Copying processing files from USB disk

The step of copying CNC processing file to system memory through USB disk follows:

In the main menu, press [Edit] to enter program edit interface;

Press [File] to enter file operation interface;

Select USB disk and press [EOB] to enter;

Move the cursor to select a CNC file and then select [Copy];

Return to the root directory, locate the PROG directory in disk D, enter the directory, and select [Paste] to complete copying.

4.3 Reading programs into work area

4.3.1 Reading programs from controller into work area

The step of loading files from system memory into work area follows:

Press [File] to enter file operation interface;

Select desired program, which is in PROG directory in disk D by default, press [EOB] to enter subdirectory,

or press [Cancel] to exit;

Move cursor to select desired program, press [EOB] to confirm and load the program.

4.3.2 Reading programs from USB disk into work area

The step of loading files from USB disk into work area follows:

Insert the USB disk;

Press [File] to enter file operation interface;

Select USB disk, move cursor to select a file in the disk, and press [EOB] to load the file.

4.4 Editing & modifying programs

The program in CNC memory can be edited with NC keypad. In the main menu, press [Edit] to enter program edit interface

and edit the program in current work area (for loading program into work area, refer to section 8.2). The edit mode is

similar to notepad in Windows. Move the cursor directly to locate, press keys to enter, press [EOB] to change line, and

press [Delete] to delete the character where the cursor locates.



After all operations, press Reset to save the files, and the functions base on edit mode;

DK300A uses new file mapping technology, and allows loading processing files that exceed its memory. Therefore, to ensure the system efficiency, you can only search and process, but can't edit the processing files that exceed 2MB.

4.4.1 Deleting files in memory

Follow the step below to delete the programs in system memory:

Press [File] to enter file operation interface;

Follow the prompt on the screen, select the file and press [Delete] to confirm and delete the file.



If the program has been loaded into work area, you need to restart the system to delete the program, or else the system will report error.

The programs loaded into the work area can't be deleted, or else the system will report error.

5. Main interfaces of the system

5.1 Position interface

The position interface shows current machine tool coordinates, including absolute position, relative position and comprehensive position. In the main interface, press [Monitor] to enter the position interface.

To enter position interface:



5.2 Absolute position

The position of current machine tool coordinates relative to the origin of workpiece coordinate system The absolute position interface follows:

Absolute	position	Au	ıto 🛛	Nonitor 📕	dit Parar	neter Coordinates	Diagnosis
X Y Z	+003 -000 +004	80.00 91.66 80.00	0 2 0	M T 0 S24 File ra S2400	05 Prog 09 Acilu 33 Feed 11 Proc 001 Shin 000 Main me: 弥勒	amming rate al rate ing rate assing places magnitication ads magnitication ads magnitication	3000 0 100% 0 100% 100%
G01 G1 G40 : [G49 :] Cuiling Ime Stopped	17 G90 000 = 0 100 = 0 0	G54 G8 00.000 00.000 0:00:00	0	60 X2 Z1. ; 61 Z0 Z-2.5 X29.4	9.5 Y-29. . F500 ; 39 F1000	5;	
<<<	Position	Track	MDI	Auxiliary function	Macro variabi	H CAM	>>>

5.3 Relative position

In manual mode, reset current coordinates to check the relative motion distance of any displacement, and thus it is called as relative position. This interface is usually used for early tool setting. Considering that some operators have been used to manual calculation, this function is preserved. With the more and more powerful of automatic centered function, it is used less.

The operation follows:

- Enter [Position] interface;
- Switch to [Relative] interface;
- Den, enter manual mode;
- Press a coordinate axis No., e.g., 'X', and the X coordinate flashes;
- Press "Cancel" to reset X coordinate to 0;

The relative position interface follows:



Relative Position Interface

5.4 Comprehensive coordinates

The interface displayed by absolute coordinates and machine tool coordinates.

Comprehensive position interface is shown below:



Comprehensive Position Interface

5.5 Edit interface

The edit interface shows the program info in current work area. In the main interface, press [PROG] to enter the program interface.

To enter program edit interface:



5.5.1 Program edit

The program edit interface shows the NC program currently processed; in edit mode, you can edit the NC program (see section 8.3 for details).

编辑

prog edit	El	DIT	/	Run	E	dit Para	m C	Coord	Test
1 0000 2 M3S2 3 G50 4 G96 5 M3 6 G01 7 G97 8 S100 9 G96 10 S20 11 G50 12 G01 13 G01 14 % 15 \PR0G\00	1 00 G01 X20 \$8000 \$200 \$1000 F100 G01X500 0 X100 G01X50 0 \$1000 \$500 \$500 \$500	00 0 Line	: 1 Co	1: 1	Progr	ram size: 14	45	► 0 0 Pa	00001 0092 ige 1/1
Stopped									
<<<	Edit	Syntax checking				File			>>>

Program Edit Interface

5.6 System info interface

The system info is a summary of the program blocks in current processing area, and calculates the resource usage in current work area. The upper right of the program directory interface shows the version info of current controller software. If our engineering personnel ask to confirm the software version of the controller on site, please provide this version info.

To enter system info interface:



System info interface is shown below:

sys info	E	TIC	/	Run 🚺 E	dit Para	m Coord	Test
System BuildD FPGA DLIB V GLIB V Curren Curren NOs o used s prepro	NVER: ata: VEF 1.7 (EP 1.7 (EP 1.3) (E 34 t NC File t Prog: C f saved p space cessing L	0.6.09 -20 0 12 108 : \PROG 00001 rog 0 KBleft .ib Ver: 1	-07-09 17:12:1 00000.CN 2 left 104857 13	8 998 5 KB			
Stop							
<<<	alert	input	output	DA	sys info		>>>

System Info Interface

5.7 MDI interface

MDI mode is mainly used for the execution of single G code in certain occasions.

To enter MDI interface:



In MDI interface, enter complete NC code instruction in edit mode, press the [Start] key in the edit mode and confirm to execute directly.

To restore the default settings quickly, press and hold the [Reset] key for three seconds and choose to reset or not.

MDI interaction interface is shown below:

MDI runr	ning El	лт		Run 📔 E	dit Para	m Coord	Test
abs X +00 Y +00 Z +00	pos 00.000 00.000 00.000	SDG17	<mark>G90G00</mark>	G54			
mac X +00 Y +00 Z +00	thine pos 00.000 00.000 00.000						
Stop							
<<<	pos	path	MDI	aid	macro		>>>

MDI Interface

5.8 File management

In the file management interface, you can manage the system files.

To enter file management interface:



File management mainly has the following functions:

Connect the UBS disk, and copy the files between USB disk and electronic disk;

Upgrade system software: Copy the upgrade file to system memory in either method above to upgrade the software;

Restart the controller. In [File Management] interface, press the Reset key to restart the controller. This method is different from restarting due to power failure. In certain occasions, you can restart the controller quickly in this method to make certain function take effect.

Connect to PC with the USB cable, and exchange the data between USB disk and PC.

File operation interface is shown below:

file manager JOG Run Edit Param Coord Test								
my equip								
	al disk(c)	local c	lisk(d) 🛸	🔎 data trav	/eler(U)			
local disk(c)								
Stop								
close	equip	new	сору	paste	cut	to pc	>>>	

File Operation Interface

5.9 Graphic simulation

[Track] function is to simulate NC processing program.

To enter graphic simulation interface:

[MONITOR]		
	[Track]	

Enter track interface to enable real-time track display automatically. During automatic running of the

system, the motion track is displayed in real-time. In standby mode, you can also press Preview to prescan the processing file.

The shortcuts of adjusting position:



PAGE : Zoom out



-%: Shift position; the shift unit is the set pixel unit

Graphic simulation interface is shown below:



Graphic Simulation Interface

5.10 Compensation interface

Tool compensation interface shows tool compensation info of the system, including tool length compensation, tool radius compensation and other input variables. The compensation method is described below.

To enter tool compensation interface:



M series tool compensation interface has two compensation variables, i.e. tool length compensation and tool radius compensation; corresponding to G43, G44 and G41, G42; enter compensation value to corresponding compensation number, and transfer the compensation number in NC program to realize the compensation. Tool compensation numbers have 36 variables.

Tool compensation interface is shown below:

Coord	El	DIT	/	Run 🚺 E	dit Para	m Coord	Test
abs pos X +0000. Y +0000. Z +0000.	. 000 . 000 . 000	Coord	Ехр	Set +	lalve 🔪 T	Cut Te	st
		offset	No length	offset	R offs	et	
		1	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
		2	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
machine	Dos	3	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
X +0000	000	4	+0000	. 000	+0000	.000	
Y +0000 Z +0000	. 000	6	+0000	000	+0000	000	
	. 000	7	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
		8	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
rel pos	000	9	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
Y +0000	. 000	10	+0000	. 000	+0000	. 000	
Z +0000	. 000						
Stop							
		Englishe	0.4		TOL	14	
<<<	Coord	Explate	Set	HALVE	TCheck	Measure	>>>

Tool Compensation Parameter Setting Interface

5.11 Workpiece coordinate system setting interface

The coordinates interface shows coordinate system info, including coordinate system and compensation.

In the main interface, press [Coordinate] to enter coordinate system.

Workpiece coordinate system

Display workpiece coordinate system, i.e. the offset of workpiece home position and machine tool home position. Totally six basic workpiece coordinate systems (G54~G59) and nine extension coordinate systems (G591~G599) are available.

To enter workpiece coordinate system interface:



The workpiece coordinate system interface is shown below:

Coord	JC)G		Run 🚺 E	dit Para	m Coord	Test
abs pos X +0000 Y +0000 Z +0000 Z +0000 Y +0000 Z +0000 Z +0000	. 000 . 000 . 000 . 000 . 000 . 000	Coord G54 X + Y + Z + A + G56 X + Y + 7 +	Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	Run E Set F G55 0 X 0 Y 0 Z 0 A G57 G57 0 X 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y 0 Y	dit Para lalve T + 0. + 0. + 0. + 0. + 0. + 0. + 0.	Coord Cut Te 000 000 000 000	st
rel pos X +0000 Y +0000 Z +0000	. 000 . 000 . 000	A +	0.00	0 A	+ 0.	. 000	
<<<	Coord	Expiate	Set	HALVE	TCheck	Measure	>>>

Workpiece Coordinate System Setting Interface

See 1.4.6.1~1.4.6.3 for the details of setting methods.